
 
 

 
 
 
16 January 2018 
 
 
To: Councillors Callow, Mrs Callow JP, Elmes, Hobson, Humphreys, Hutton, Owen, Mrs Scott 

and L Williams  
 

The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 24 January 2018 at 6.00 pm 
in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state: 
 
(1) the type of interest concerned either a 
 

(a) personal interest 
(b) prejudicial interest 
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) 

 
and 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned 
 
If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 
 

2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 15 NOVEMBER 2017  (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 To agree the minutes of the last meeting held on 15 November 2017 as an accurate 
record. 
 

3  PUBLIC SPEAKING   
 

 To consider any applications from members of the public to speak at the meeting. 
 

  

Public Document Pack



4  PUBLIC MENTAL HEALTH AND SUICIDE PREVENTION  (Pages 9 - 30) 
 

 To provide an update on public mental health and suicide prevention. 
 

5  BLACKPOOL CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP MID YEAR 2017-2018 PERFORMANCE 
REPORT (APRIL 2017 TO SEPTEMBER 2017)  (Pages 31 - 48) 
 

 To consider the mid-year 2017-2018 performance of the Blackpool Clinical 
Commissioning Group for April 2017 - September 2017. 
 

6  FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 49 - 54) 
 

 To consider the content of the Council’s Forward Plan, January 2018 - May 2018, 
relating to Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee (AHSC) functions. 
 

7  ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORKPLAN 2017-2018 
 (Pages 55 - 66) 
 

 To consider the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee Workplan 2017-2018, 
together with any suggestions that Members may wish to make for scrutiny review 
topics. 
 

8  NEXT MEETING   
 

 To note the date and time of the next meeting as Wednesday, 14 March 2018 
commencing at 6pm in Committee Room A, Blackpool Town Hall. 
 

 

Venue information: 
 
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Sandip Mahajan, Senior Democratic 
Governance Adviser, Tel: 01253 477211, e-mail sandip.mahajan@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
 

Present:  
 
Councillor Hobson (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors 
 
Callow 
Mrs Callow JP 

Elmes 
Humphreys 

Hutton 
Owen 

Mrs Scott 
L Williams 

 
In Attendance:  
Councillor Amy Cross Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, Health and Safeguarding 
Councillor Vikki Singleton 
Mr Neil Jack, Chief Executive 
Ms Karen Smith, Director of Adult Services  
Dr Arif Rajpura, Director of Public Health 
Ms Lynn Donkin, Consultant in Public Health 
Ms Judith Mills, Consultant in Public Health 
Ms Liz Petch, Public Health Specialist 
Ms Merle Davies, Director, Centre for Early Development 
Ms Val Watson, Delivery Development Officer 
Mr Sandip Mahajan, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser 
 
1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Williams declared a personal interest in Item 5 (Council Plan Performance) and 
Item 7 (Adult Social Care Overview) as her partner worked as a Commissioning Officer at 
the Council. 
 
2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 27 SEPTEMBER 2017 
 
The Committee agreed that the minutes of the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on 27 September 2017 be signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 
 
3 PUBLIC SPEAKING 
 
The Committee noted that there were no applications to speak by members of the public 
on this occasion. 
 
4 ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORKPLAN 2017-2018 
 
Members were referred to the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Workplan for 2017-
2018, a proposed scrutiny review on Breastfeeding peer support for their consideration 
and progress with the Implementation of Recommendations.  
 
The proposed review on Breastfeeding peer support had been suggested by Councillor 
Vikki Singleton, using the Scrutiny Selection Checklist form. The proposal outlined the  
 
 Page 1

Agenda Item 2



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
 

value of breastfeeding to babies and mothers, the perceived benefits of the service and 
why it was felt peer support was still needed. This had followed the termination of the 
peer support contract in June 2017 which had been delivered by the Star Buddies 
organisation.  
 
The Council’s Public Health Department, which was responsible for commissioning  the 
contract, had provided information summarising breastfeeding benefits, contract 
provision and what had been achieved. The information included ongoing and proposed 
work and partnerships as part of a wider health offer to support people. A chart of infant 
feeding support routes had been provided.  
 
Mr Neil Jack, Chief Executive was present as the Better Start Partnership Board’s Deputy 
Chair. He explained that current work and plans in development were aimed at a wider 
holistic community-based approach to infant health (diet and nutrition) rather than 
focusing solely on breastfeeding. There would still be opportunities for breastfeeding 
support. He added that previous support had not secured significant long-term 
improvements in breastfeeding rates and that progress had declined in recent years. 
 
He explained that the long-term Better Start Programme for young children (and also the 
Head Start Programme supporting the emotional resilience of older children) was aimed 
at developing and trialling innovative approaches which could be based on international 
research. He added that better outcomes would be achieved through taking risks, 
challenging and reviewing impact and using more resources where appropriate.  
  
Mr Jack added that methods needed to be tailored to meet the needs of different wards 
especially the most deprived. He proposed continuing to build the Better Start 
Partnership work which would be monitored by its Board. Progress could be reported to 
the Committee in a few months (middle of 2018). 
 
Ms Merle Davies, Director, Centre for Early Development referred to a paper which was 
due to be considered by the Better Start Executive. She explained that families had been 
consulted and they did not want to be directed by professionals but wanted an inclusive 
approach. Families had also rated breastfeeding peer support as a relatively low priority. 
She outlined the scope of the Better Start Partnership work referring to health visitors 
and midwives providing increased early support to families. She added that people acting 
as ‘Community Connectors’ would be able to offer local support.  She mentioned that 
NHS England was supportive of the work.  
 
Members queried the timing of when Better Start work would take effect in terms of 
impact and referred to the apparent current void in breastfeeding peer support. Dr Arif 
Rajpura, Director of Public Health referred to various alternative options currently 
available and that the Better Start work would provide more holistic support and better 
outcomes. 
 
Members referred to needing to work in partnership and making best use of all resources. 
They requested that Star Buddies’ experience was not lost and that they were included in 
the partnership work.  
 
 Page 2



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
 

Councillor Amy Cross, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health and Safeguarding 
stated that the previous contract had not provided good value for money. She added that 
the proposed ‘Community Connectors’ would provide local support.  
 
Councillor Singleton, as the proposer of the review, acknowledged that previous 
breastfeeding peer support services had not been fully effective but advised that there 
remained a gap in provision and that peer support was still required. She accepted that 
the proposed approach of providing peer support through Better Start aimed to fill any 
gaps and that there was therefore no need for a Scrutiny review at this time.  
 
Members recognised the ongoing Better Start work and wider holistic approach and 
determined that significant additional value would not be achieved through a scrutiny 
review. 
 
The Committee agreed: 
1. To approve the Scrutiny Workplan subject to adding a progress report on the  
 Public Health / Better Start work, for supporting families and children during  

pregnancy and early stages of childhood, to the Committee’s July 2018 meeting. 
2. To note the ‘Implementation of Recommendations’ table. 
 
5 COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORT 2017-2018 
 
Ms Val Watson, Delivery Development Officer presented progress with Council Plan 
performance indicators for the period 1 April 2017 to 30 September 2017. She explained 
that a revised approach had been developed with sixteen comprehensive indicators for 
Adult Social Care and fourteen for Public Health. Both Directors were present to answer 
any detailed service questions.  
 
She added that performance reports would be biannually with a full end-year report 
scheduled for the Committee’s July 2018 meeting. She concluded that the performance 
format was still evolving. 
 
The Chairman requested for the targets for each indicator to be detailed in the main 
performance pages so that progress could be checked more meaningfully. Targets had 
only been included in the ‘exceptions’ commentary pages for performance indicators that 
were not meeting targets.  Val Watson confirmed that robust comparative data would be 
included. 
 
The Chairman referred to numbers of both opiate and non-opiate drug users successfully 
completing recovery treatment (and not re-presenting within six months of completion) 
being well below target. He queried the impact of the new holistic drug and alcohol 
support service which had been running since April 2017. 
 
Dr Rajpura explained that the initial performance of the new service was similar to 
comparable areas. Good progress had been made in recent years with drug users 
supported through to recovery. However, these had been people with less deep-rooted, 
long-term problems than remaining users who had the most complex and challenging  
 
 Page 3



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
 

needs. Issues included homelessness, mental health, substance misuse and domestic 
abuse. Innovative approaches needed to be developed. He added that the Lottery-funded 
Fulfilling Lives Programme also worked with these individuals. 
 
Ms Judith Mills, Consultant in Public Health added that commissioning of drug and alcohol 
support services came within a new integrated commissioning approach. The new service 
tried to encourage people to move straight into detox / rehabilitation stages with an aim 
to promote robust recovery instead of the six months target.  
 
Councillor Cross referred to the holistic approach of recovery involving skills, employment 
and housing. She explained that the previous service had included generic support 
workers covering drugs and alcohol. Specialised staff now provided more dedicated 
support for each area. The effectiveness of the new staffing approach would be 
monitored. She added that the data did not include people who might stay on prescribed 
methadone all their lives but still managed productive jobs. She agreed that more 
progress was needed.  
 
Ms Mills added that a full first-year progress report for the new service had been 
scheduled for the Committee’s March 2018 meeting with both commissioner and service 
provider representatives.  
 
The Chairman referred to the recent poor performance for supporting people to stop 
smoking within four weeks of referral. The commentary had referred to the support 
service having been decommissioned and would not be recommissioned. The 
commentary included reference to smoking being one of the worst illnesses.  
 
Dr Rajpura explained that the data usually came from the NHS Digital Service. However, 
the latest figures were not available. The data was incorrect and had been provided in 
error from another source.  He added that performance had declined but a new smoking 
support service would be commissioned early in 2018.  
 
Members expressed concerns over value for money (efficiency and effectiveness).  There 
were costs involved in developing support services which needed to be effective for 
people. Decommissioning and recommissioning could be inefficient. Members suggested 
that best practice from other councils needed to be considered. 
 
Councillor Cross agreed that there needed to be more effective commissioning of new 
services and robust contract management. Dr Rajpura acknowledged that health 
outcomes in Blackpool were poor but all deprived areas faced comparable issues and 
significant challenges. It was important to work with local people to encourage lifestyle 
change and develop innovative approaches. He referred to current programmes including 
Better Start, Head Start and Fulfilling Lives. 
 
Members referred to the ‘Making Every Contact Count’ (MECC) performance which was 
well below target and did not appear achievable. They noted that the target concerned 
training frontline Council staff so ought to be manageable otherwise should be reduced.   
 
 
 Page 4



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
 

Dr Rajpura explained that the target was not mandatory. Public Health staff would be 
seeing management teams across the Council to identify which staff could make the most 
impact through this target to support people widely across services. He agreed that the 
target should then be adjusted. Members added that reducing targets should not be an 
automatic option if a target was not met. It was important to see the methodology 
behind a target and associated work.  
 
Members referred to the target to increase the number of people with learning 
difficulties who had paid employment. They queried whether people in the voluntary 
sector or other unpaid work should be included in the target. Ms Karen Smith, Director of 
Adult Services explained that this was national indicator but consideration would be given 
to the suggestion.  
 
The Committee agreed: 

1. That performance reports should include targets for all indicators in the main 
performance pages. 

2. That target-setting methodology should be shown in performance reports where 
targets were not being met or where there may be proposals to reset targets. 

3. That, within performance reports and in reference to the target of people with 
learning difficulties who had paid employment, consideration should be given to 
including, people working in the voluntary sector or other unpaid work who had 
learning difficulties.  

 
6 PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE - OVERVIEW REPORT 
 
Dr Rajpura presented the Public Health overview report which covered topical areas of 
work and plans.  
 
He referred to life expectancy rates within Blackpool which, at 74.3 years for men and 
79.4 for women, was the lowest in the country for both genders. In the most deprived 
areas in Blackpool, men lived 11.8 years less than the local average and women lived 8.5 
years less.  
 
There was a correlation between low life expectancy and poor health which was evident 
in Blackpool. Nationally, life expectancy had been increasing for men and women. In 
recent years, the dual increase had been reflected in Blackpool albeit at a slower rate of 
increase. However, local expectancy had decreased over the last year.  
 
Dr Rajpura explained that Blackpool suffered a higher than average rate of deaths for 
people aged under 65 years old due to a number of poor health and lifestyle factors. He 
added that 75% of deaths of people aged 35-74 years old involved people who had 
moved to Blackpool reflecting the significant transient population.  
 
In response to reference being made to suicide related deaths being recorded by where 
people were born, it was suggested a similar approach was needed for a better 
understanding of early deaths. It was explained that current data capture was based on 
people being resident in Blackpool but a more detailed breakdown could be provided. It  
 
 Page 5



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
 

was added that poor quality housing, particularly private sector multiple-occupancy, was 
a significant factor in poor health and needed to be tackled.  
 
Dr Rajpura referred to the five-year programme (2013-2018) of NHS health checks for 
people aged 40-74 years old. The health checks were for early detection of the most 
common serious illnesses. The annual rate of health checks had fallen. Public Health 
commissioned the service which was provided by GPs who were also responsible for 
sending out invites to registered patients. There remained 4.000 people who had not 
received an invite and a substantial percentage of those invited had not attended a health 
check. It was important that everyone had the opportunity and ‘hard to reach’ people 
were encouraged. Public Health would be working with GPs to remedy this.  
 
In response to a suggestion that health check venues needed to be accessible, e.g. ‘walk-
in’ centres, it was confirmed that accessibility was good. Health checks were not delivered 
by GPs but by other staff and were held in familiar community venues. Pharmacies were 
another option although a consulting room was required. 
 
It was also explained that Public Health had investigated poor take-up of health checks. 
There were conflicting responses but often people were reluctant to use up NHS time 
when they were not ill. Public Health would be promoting messages to encourage people 
to attend to ensure serious illnesses were detected in good time and so also easing 
hospital pressures. 
 
Dr Rajpura referred to the free school breakfast programme for primary school-children 
which started in 2013. On a daily basis, 11,000 breakfasts were served. Northumbria 
University had undertaken a three year research programme evaluating the behavioural, 
educational and social impact of the free breakfast on children. The scheme did promote 
healthier eating, e.g. more fruit. Due to the timing of school and home mealtimes, some 
children had two breakfasts but calorie intake was still within recommended levels.  
 
The Chairman referred to work on promoting sexual health. Pre-exposure Prophylaxis 
(PrEP), which was a daily pill used to reduce the risk of HIV for vulnerable people, had 
been rolled out nationally. He enquired when this would be implemented locally and was 
advised that Blackpool would be getting its resource allocation in early 2018.  
 
The Chairman enquired whether Public Health was aware of the well regarded sexual 
health clinic at 56 Dean Street, London which had developed a best practice ‘Plan Zero’ 
approach for tackling HIV. Public Health confirmed that one of the Dean Street specialists 
was sharing work with professionals at the Blackpool sexual health clinic.  
 
Members referred to the rates and effectiveness of chlamydia testing. They were 
informed that Blackpool took part in the national screening programme which was 
working well with good detection of the disease. It was important to maintain this.  
 
7 ADULT SOCIAL CARE REGULATED CARE SERVICES - OVERVIEW REPORT 
 
Ms Smith presented the Adult Social Care overview report which covered topical areas of 
work and plans.  
 Page 6



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
 

She explained that the shortage of dementia beds for elderly people was a particular 
issue as numbers of people with dementia were rising fast. A recent ‘expressions of 
interest’ invite had been issued to potential care partners as a way of fact-finding and 
jointly developing solutions.  She confirmed that there had been good interest with 
fourteen responses including some unlikely organisations who might have new ideas / 
resource. The Commissioning Service was reviewing the responses and this would allow 
the local care provider market to be developed based on future needs, costs and supply 
options. She added that one of the main current providers was also looking at developing 
a new care provision within the next two years.  
 
Ms Smith referred to care support being provided in people’s own homes (‘care at 
home’). This was a growing demand issue both locally and nationally with the increasingly 
population particularly elderly people. There were resource pressures involving the 
people capacity to deliver care and costs of care. Care at home support was being 
developed jointly with other partners 
 
She added that the Quality Monitoring Team, part of the Commissioning Service, was 
proactive in working with, and providing support to, care providers and people being 
cared for. This also involved quality monitoring and requiring improvements.  
 
Ms Smith concluded that the Care Quality Commission, who were the national regulator 
of all care providers and services, had given good ratings overall for nursing/care homes 
and for ‘care at home’ providers commissioned by the Council.  
 
The Chairman queried what plans were being pursued to implement improvement 
recommended by the Commission. Ms Smith explained that action plans would need to 
be produced by those providers for the Commission and the Quality Monitoring Team 
would also be involved in scrutinising the plans and progress.  
 
She added that sometimes wider improvement was requested beyond what the 
Commission sought. The Quality Monitoring Team could meet providers to ensure that 
they understood requirements and had capacity to deliver a viable plan. Community 
nursing staff might also be involved in providing support. Enhanced monitoring processes 
would be put in place where necessary and actions could be imposed such as suspending 
a provider from taking any new clients until improvements had been made and there was 
good assurance. Sustainable improvement was important.  
 
Members queried the risk of bullying of vulnerable people by staff or other residents and 
queried what safeguards were in place to prevent this from happening, particularly as 
vulnerable people were often reluctant to raise issues. Ms Smith acknowledged that this 
could be challenged but added that all staff and other people had a duty to safeguard 
vulnerable people. All care providers had polices which they needed to promote and the 
Care Quality Commission did inspect safeguarding. People were more likely to come 
forward with concerns if safeguards were in place. She added that Healthwatch, who 
acted as the service user’s voice, had ‘enter and view’ powers to inspect care/nursing 
homes. GPs might also identify issues.   
 
 
 Page 7



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
 

8 BLACKPOOL SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017 
 
Mr David Sanders, former Independent Chair of the Blackpool Safeguarding Adults Board, 
presented the Board’s Annual Report for 2016-2017.  
 
He explained that the Board was a multi-agency partnership working together to 
safeguard adults at risk of abuse or neglect. The Board had become a statutory body in 
2015 following the Care Act 2014. He referred to the development of the partnership as 
an increasingly effective safeguarding body since 2015. There had been improved 
communications, learning lessons (from reviews and other formats), increased training 
and evaluation to ensure improved operational standards.  
 
Mr Sanders referred to the Board’s current Business Plan 2016-2018 and main priorities. 
These were the ‘Toxic Trio’ (mental health, substance misuse, domestic abuse), self-
neglect, risk thresholds and transitions (children moving to adult support services). He 
added that Blackpool was an area with significant challenges and the Board pursued 
family-based safeguarding, e.g. for domestic abuse, involving both Safeguarding Boards 
for Adults and Children. 
 
He explained that significant work was ongoing with an evolving dataset. There was 
current work on financial abuse and Accident and Emergency (mental health crisis 
support). He mentioned that that the Adults’ Board had been developing work on a sub-
regional level with other Boards across Lancashire. There was a more joined-up approach 
between the two Boards with shared meeting days involving separate Board meetings 
and a joint session looking at common priority issues.  
 
Mr Sanders also referred to the Board’s financial sustainability. The Chairman asked 
about the impact of budget cuts on the ability of the police to safeguard and also what 
value for money the Board had achieved. Mr Sanders responded that it was not good if 
resources such as Police Community Safety Officers (PCSOs) were cut and re-iterated the 
range of the Board’s work with reference to value for money.  
 
9 NEXT MEETING 
 
The Committee noted the date and time of the next meeting as Wednesday 24 January 
2018 commencing at 6pm in Committee Room A, Blackpool Town Hall. 
  
  
  
Chairman 
  
(The meeting ended at 7.45 pm) 
  
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: 
Sandip Mahajan, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser 
Tel: 01253 477211 
E-mail: sandip.mahajan@blackpool.gov.uk 

Page 8



 

Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Zohra Dempsey, Public Health Practitioner 

Date of Meeting:  24 January 2018 

 

PUBLIC MENTAL HEALTH AND SUICIDE PREVENTION 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 
 

To provide an update on public mental health and suicide prevention.  
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to comment upon actions and progress being made and 
highlight any areas for further scrutiny which will be reported back as appropriate. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To ensure constructive and robust scrutiny of actions to promote public mental health 
and suicide prevention in Blackpool. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

N/A 

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:  None 

  

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “Communities: Creating stronger communities and 
increasing resilience”. 
 

5.0 Background information 
 

5.1 
 
 

Mental health is a significant issue in Blackpool.  During the period 2014-2016, 
Blackpool had the seventh highest rate of suicide of any upper tier local authority in 
England, for all persons.  This is a significantly higher rate per 100,000 population than 
England as a whole (16.0, compared to 9.9 per 100,000, rising to 27.1 per 100,000 for 
males).  

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

5.2 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.5 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
5.7 
 

There were 57 deaths from suicide and undetermined injury in the three year period 
2014-2016.   
 
Hospital admissions for intentional self-harm are the worst in England (635.3 per 
100,000, compared to 196.5 for the national average).  GP recorded prevalence of 
depression and severe mental illness are significantly higher than the national average 
across England.1 
 
Blackpool Council’s Public Mental Health Action Plan 2016-2019 includes programmes 
of work to:  
 

 Promote good mental health and resilience across the population; 

 Prevent mental ill health and suicide; 

 Reduce the stigma and discrimination associated with mental illness; 

 Improve the quality and length of life of people living with mental illness. 
 
In response to the NHS Five Year Forward View for Mental Health, there is a 
programme of transformation across the NHS. All Sustainability and Transformation 
localities were expected to have a suicide prevention plan in place by 2017, with a 
10% reduction in suicide by 2020.   
 
The Lancashire and South Cumbria Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 
(STP) has established a Suicide Prevention Oversight Group, working across the STP to 
achieve the national target.  
 
An STP-level Suicide Prevention Logic model action plan was developed in 2017, 
following a scoping exercise.  A Suicide Prevention Task and Finish Group was 
established with key stakeholders across Lancashire and South Cumbria, including 
Police, North West Ambulance Service, Prison and local authority Public Health Leads.  
This group took the findings from the scoping exercise and developed the logic model.   
 

6.0 Lancashire and South Cumbria Suicide Prevention Logic Model Action Plan 
 

6.1 
 
 

 

 

The vision for the Logic Model is: 

“Lancashire and South Cumbria residents are emotionally resilient and have positive 
mental health”. 

 

 

                                                           
1
 Public Health Outcomes Framework https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental- 

health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/102/are/E06000008  

Page 10

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-%20health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/102/are/E06000008
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-%20health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/102/are/E06000008


6.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.3 
 

6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.5 

The Logic Model contains a number of short, medium and long term outcomes, to 
ensure that the vision is achieved and the 10% reduction target is met.  It has been 
divided into 5 work streams: 

 Leadership 

 Prevention 

 Intervention 

 Postvention (support after suicide) 

 Intelligence  

The Prevention work stream is being led by Public Health leads across Lancashire and 
South Cumbria.   

A consultation event was held in September 2017, with representation from local 
authorities, clinical commissioning groups, NHS services, prisons, third sector and 
people with lived experience of suicide (or attempted).  The plan was amended to 
reflect feedback from stakeholders and has now been signed-off by the Oversight 
Board.  A full mobilisation and fully resourced plan will now be developed by the end 
of January 2018, to ensure the Logic Model is delivered and the outcomes are 
achieved.   

Some suicide prevention work is already happening on a Blackpool footprint as part of 
the Public Mental Health Action Plan, this will continue and has been incorporated 
into the Logic Model as Local Authority-level actions, for example, interventions 
targeting men. 

7.0 Key Developments in Blackpool 

  

7.1  Fifteen non-mental health staff have been trained to deliver an evidence-
based intervention for depression.  These include staff working in substance 
misuse services, the police and Blackpool Young People’s Hub.  A second 
cohort will be trained by March 2018; 

 Since April 2017, 288 frontline staff across partners have attended Applied 
Suicide Intervention Skills Training (ASIST); 

 Blackpool is now a Time to Change Hub, a partnership of organisations 
(statutory, third sector and private) and people with lived experience of 
mental ill-health working together to reduce mental health stigma and 
discrimination.  This led to the delivery of an event for World Mental Health 
Day in October 2017, a planned event for Time to Talk Day in February 2018 
and an increase in the number of Time to Change Champions, some of whom 
will receive a small grant through the Champions’ Campaign Fund to deliver 
campaign activity in their own communities.  A number of young champions 
have been recruited and an event is being planned to launch the campaign for 
young people across the Fylde Coast; 
 

Page 11



 High-frequency areas for suicide have been identified, with risk-reduction 
plans being developed; 

 Public Health is working with the Coroner’s Office to pilot ‘real-time’ 
surveillance of suicide to ensure the rapid identification of high frequency 
locations and clusters; 

 A Green Infrastructure Strategy has been developed (the link between mental 
wellbeing and the availability of green space in urban areas have been well-
documented); 

 External funding has been secure for the development of a ‘Men in Sheds’ 
programme, targeting socially isolated men and/or those at risk of poor 
mental health and suicide; 

 The development of the Fylde Coast Self Care Strategy, which has a strong 
emphasis on improving mental health. 

 

 
 

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices:  

 Appendix  4 (a)  –Lancashire and South Cumbria Suicide Prevention 
Logic Model Action Plan  

 

  

8.0 Legal considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 
 

9.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None 

10.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

10.1 
 

None 

11.0 Financial considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None 
 

12.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

12.1 None 
 

13.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

13.1 None 

Page 12



 

14.0 Internal/External Consultation undertaken: 
 

14.1 
 

Consultation for both plans has been undertaken across partners and people with 
experience of mental ill health 
 

15.0 Background papers: 
 

15.1 
 
 
 
 
15.2 
 
 
 
 
15.3 
 
 
 
 
 

NHS England Mental Health Taskforce, ‘The Five Year Forward View for Mental 
Health’2 - This report makes the case for transforming mental health care in England, 
with more of a focus towards prevention.  The corresponding implementation plan 
outlines how this will be achieved with the main focus on NHS services. 
 
Better Mental Health for All: a public health approach to mental health improvement3 
- this guidance from the Faculty of Public Health and the Mental Health Foundation 
outlines what can be done individually and collectively to enhance the mental health 
of individuals, families and communities by using a public health approach. 
 
Local suicide Prevention Planning: A practice resource4- This resource, supported by 
the National Suicide Prevention Alliance outlines how local authorities can in 
partnership with mental health and health care services, primary care, schools, 
employers and other organisations to develop a local suicide prevention plan.   

 

                                                           
2
 The Mental Health Taskforce (2016) the five year forward view for mental health. 

3
 Mental Health Foundation & Faculty of Public Health (2016)  Better mental health for all: a public health approach to mental health 

improvement 
4
 Public Health England (2016) Local suicide prevention planning: a practice resource  

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

Lancashire and South Cumbria STP 
 Suicide Prevention Logic Model 

 
 
Long Term 
Outcomes 
 
 
 
 
 
Intermediate 
Outcomes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Short Term 
Outcomes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Long Term Outcome 
Reduction in suicides   

 

Intermediate 
Outcome 1 

A strong integrated 
Suicide Prevention 
Action Plan that is 
owned by all key 
stakeholders 

Intermediate Outcome 
2 

Elimination of suicides for in-
patient and community mental 
health care settings and 
Criminal Justice settings 
including Prison and Police 
Custody 

PREVENTION (IOs 1-6)    
 
ST Outcome 4 
Increased awareness of suicide risks 
and suicide prevention  
ST Outcome 5 
Improved mental health and wellness 
Short Term Outcome 6 
Communities and service providers 
are more skilled to identify individuals 
at risk of suicide and respond 
appropriately  
Short Term Outcome 7 
The media delivers sensitive 
approaches to suicide and suicidal 
behaviour 
Short Term Outcome 8 
Restrict access to means and 
respond effectively to High risk 
locations 
Short Term Outcome 9 
Increased awareness of impact of 
Adverse Childhood Experiences 
Short Term Outcome 10 
Development of an Offender MH 
Pathway for when released in to the 
community 
 

POSTVENTION (IOs 1&3 )   
 
Short Term Outcome 17 
All those bereaved by suicide 
will be offered timely and 
appropriate information and 
offered support by specialist 
bereavement services within 
72 hours 
   
Short Term Outcome 18 
All identified suicide clusters 
have a community response 
plan and schools have a post 
suicide intervention protocol in 
place   
 
 

 

Intermediate  
Outcome 5 

To provide better 
information and support to 
those affected by suicide 
and those at risk of suicide 

Intermediate 
Outcome 6 

Improved use of 
evidence, data 
and intelligence 

INTERVENTION (IOs 1-3)   
 
Short Term Outcome 11 

Preventing and responding to self-

harm, ensuring care meets NICE 

guidance 

Short Term Outcome 12 
Adoption and full implementation of a 
Perfect Depression Care Pathway that 
meets NICE guidance 
Short Term Outcome 13 
High risk groups are effectively 
supported and risks minimised through 
effective protocols and safeguarding 
practices 
Short Term Outcome 14 
24/7 functioning CRHTT that are high 
CORE fidelity 
Short Term Outcome 15 
Liaison Mental Health Teams that meet 
CORE 24 standards 
Short Term Outcome 16 
Dual Diagnosis pathways, ensuring 
care meets NICE guidance (NG58) are 
agreed and implemented 
 
 

INTELLIGENCE (IO 1& 6)   
 
Short Term Outcome 19 
To establish a data collection and 
evaluation system to track 
progress 
 
Short Term Outcome 20 
To develop a consistent Suicide 
Audit template and schedule is 
agreed by all LAs 
 
Short Term Outcome 21 
To have ‘Real-Time Data’ 
surveillance system across 
Lancs+ SC re suicide and 
attempts and drug related deaths 
 
Short Term Outcome 22 
Sharing lessons learnt, best 
practice and recommendations 
from Serious Case Reviews/ Child 
Death Overview Reviews 

Intermediate 
Outcome 3 

Clear pathway of care for 
CYP and Adults who Self 

Harm that meets NICE 
guidance 

 

Vision Lancashire and South Cumbria residents are 
emotionally resilient and have positive mental health 

 

LEADERSHIP (IOs 1-6)   
 
ST Outcome 1 
An effective Suicide Prevention 
Oversight Board 
 
ST Outcome 2 
Greater integration of suicide 
reduction activities within other 
strategies and service plans 
 
Short Term Outcome 3 
Secure high level Lancs and South 
Cumbria political support for suicide 
prevention, with support from local 
political mental health champions  

 

Long Term Outcome 
Reduction in self-harm  

 

Long Term Outcome 
Improve outcomes for those affected by 

suicide 

Intermediate 
Outcome 4 

Effective support to 
those who are 

affected/bereaved by 
suicide  

 

P
age 15



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

 
 

 LEADERSHIP  
 

Long Term 
Outcomes 

Reduction in suicides   
 

Reduction in self-harm  
 

The impact of suicide, on those affected by it, is 
relieved 

 

Intermediate 
Outcomes 

Outcome 1 
A strong integrated 
Suicide Prevention 
Action Plan that is 
owned by all key 

stakeholders 

Outcome 2 
Elimination of 

suicides for in-patient 
and community 

mental health care 
settings 

Outcome 3  
Clear pathway of 
care for CYP and 
Adults who Self 
Harm that meets 
NICE guidance 

 

Outcome 4 
Effective support to those who 
are affected/bereaved by suicide  

 

Outcome 5 
To develop and 

support our workforce 
to assess and support 
those who may be at 

risk of suicide 

Outcome 6 
Improved use of 

evidence, data and 
intelligence 

 

Short 
Term 
Outcomes 

Short Term Outcome 1 
An effective Suicide Prevention Board 

 

Short Term Outcome 2 
 

Greater integration of suicide reduction activities 
within other strategies and service plans 

Short Term Outcome 3 
Secure high level Lancs and South Cumbria political 

support for suicide prevention, with support from 
local political mental health and suicide prevention 

champions 

 
 
Signs of 
success 

6 SP Oversight Board meetings held each year 
 
LA Safeguarding Boards are provided with regular 
updates on progress 
 
 
 

Suicide Prevention Commitments and Statements 
are included in all key stakeholders policies and 
strategies i.e. HR Policies 
 
Every organisation has s suicide prevention policy 
for staff 

All H&WB have agreed the content and signed up to 
support the delivery of the Lancs and SC SP Action 
Plan  
 
All LAs have a MH and Suicide Prevention Elected 
Member Champion   
 
 

Reach Key Stakeholders, Safeguarding Boards, LA Suicide 
Prevention groups, STP Governance meetings, 
Local Authorities, Primary and Secondary Care 
organisations, Police, Fire Service, NWAS, CYP 
service, Commissioners and 3rd Sector services, 
Local Communities 

Local Authorities, Primary and Secondary Care 
organisations, Police, Fire Service, NWAS, CYP 
service, Commissioners and 3

rd
 Sector services, 

Private Sector (particularly Construction, Carer 
Organisations) 
 

Local Authorities- Health and Well Being Boards, 
Elected Members 
Local Communities, 
 
 

 
Output 

 
Commitment from all key stakeholders to reduce 
and prevent  Suicides 
 
 

 
Suicide Prevention is seen as the responsibility for 
all in Lancs+ SC 

. 
Elected Member Mental Health and Suicide 
Prevention champions in each of the LAs 

P
age 16



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

 
 
 
 

Activity Bi Monthly SP Oversight Board meeting  

 

To attend at each Health and Wellbeing Board to  
seek support for the Lancs and SC STP action plan 
action plans  

To provide update reports to local Safeguarding 
Boards and Health and Wellbeing Boards on the 
development and delivery/ implementation of the 
Suicide Prevention STP Plan  

Strategic Leaders pledges/ commitment to deliver of 
the Suicide Prevention Action Plan 

Strategic Leads across Lancs and SC to consider to 
sign up to the No More Zero Suicide Alliance 

   
 
 
 
 

To develop a  Suicide Prevention narrative and key 
areas for action for strategies and plans where 
suicide and suicide prevention is a related issue or 
risk e.g. drugs and alcohol, long-term conditions   
 
Key stakeholders to audit current policies and 
procedures to establish if suicide prevention/ risk of 
suicide is included 
 
Mapping of key stakeholders data to allow for 
segmentation and targeting for those high at risk of 
suicide 

Define the role of Mental Health and Suicide 
Prevention Champion 

LA PH Leads to present the role and expectation to 
LA Cabinet meetings 

To identify Elected Members that will take on the 
role of Mental Health and Suicide Prevention 
Champion 

Train the MH/ Suicide Prevention Champions 

 

Inputs  Officer time to attend meetings 

Officer time to produce update reports 

 

Financial 

Officer time to conduct audit of policies 
 
Analytical  

Training of Mental Health and Suicide Prevention 
Elected Member Champions 

Officers time  

Financial 

Training  

 

  

P
age 17



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

PREVENTION 
   

Long 
Term 
Outcome
s 

Reduction in suicides   
 

Reduction in self-harm  
 

The impact of suicide, on those affected by it, is 
relieved  

 

Intermediate 
Outcomes 

Outcome 1 
A strong integrated 
Suicide Prevention 
Action Plan that is 
owned by all key 

stakeholders 

Outcome 2 
Elimination of 

suicides for in-patient 
and community 

mental health care 
settings 

Outcome 3  
Clear pathway of 
care for CYP and 
Adults who Self 
Harm that meets 
NICE guidance 

 

Outcome 4 
Effective support to those who 
are affected/bereaved by suicide  

 

Outcome 5 
To develop and 

support our workforce 
to assess and support 
those who may be at 

risk of suicide 

Outcome 6 
Improved use of 

evidence, data and 
intelligence 

 
 

 
Short Term 
Outcome 

Short Term 
Outcome 4 
 
Increased 
awareness of 
suicide risks and 
suicide prevention 

Short Term 
Outcome 5 
 
Improved mental 
health and 
wellness 
 
 
 
 

Short Term 
Outcome 6 
 
Communities and 
service providers 
are more skilled to 
identify individuals 
at risk of suicide 
and respond 
appropriately 

Short Term 
Outcome 7 

The media delivers 
sensitive 
approaches to 
suicide and 
suicidal behaviour 

Short Term 
Outcome 8 
 
Restrict access to 
means and 
respond effectively 
to hotspots 
 

Short Term 
Outcome 9 
 
Increased 
awareness of 
impact of Adverse 
Childhood 
Experiences 
(ACEs) 

Short Term 
Outcome 10 
 
Development of 
an Offender MH 
Pathway for when 
released in to the 
community 

 
Signs of success 

   
% of people who 
report that they are 
more aware of who 
is at risk of suicide 
and ways in which 
that it can be 
prevented 
 
Decrease in 
Suicide rates 
across the STP 
 
Increased 

 
Increase in 
volunteering 
 
Increase in 
residents taking 
part in physical 
activities across 
the STP area 
 
Increase in those 
accessing Adult 
Learning 
opportunities 

Specify number 
people  trained in 
SP  
 
% who are trained 
who improved 
knowledge, skills 
confidence in  
identifying 
individuals at risk 
 
Specify number 
public sector  
organisations who 

Local Authorities 
and 4 local media 
organisations have  
pledged to adhere 
by the Samaritans 
suicide  reporting 
guidance   

No of stakeholders 
that sign up and 
adopt the 
principles for the 
reporting of 

Reduction in  
suicides in suicide 
hotspots  
 
 
 

Staff in key 
agencies have an 
increased 
awareness of 
ACEs and the 
impact that they 
have on CYP 
 
 
Increase in staff 
that report that 
they are able to 
support/ refer to 
services that will 

Clear pathway for 
offenders to 
access MH 
services when 
released for 
custody, 
particularly for 
those that are 
high risk of suicide 
i.e. on suicide 
watch in the 
custodial estate 
 
Reduction in the 

P
age 18



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

awareness of the 
suicide audit 
findings across all 
key stakeholders 

 
5 Ways to 
Wellbeing 
embedded in 
commissioned 
services 
 
Increase in mental 
health awareness 
training 

agree to make SP 
training mandatory  
 
Specify number of 
people who are 
trained in the 
impact/ risk of Self 
Harm 
 
Number of hours of 
Protected Learning 
time allocated by 
CCGs for Suicide 
Prevention  
awareness training 
sessions 

suicides help CYP when 
an ACE is 
identified 
 
Increase in the 
number of 
services that are 
commissioned 
which include and 
monitors ACEs  

number of 
suicides of 
prisoners on 
release from 
custody 
 
Offender Health 
Pathway protocol 
developed and 
signed off 

Reach Those more at risk 
of suicide: men, 
older,  
Private 
businesses; taxi, 
barbers 
Schools and 
colleges 
Prisons 
Substance misuse 
services , Local 
authorities, Primary 
and Secondary 
Health, DWP, 
CAB, 3

rd
 Sector 

Organisations   
 

Universal – whole 
population 
 
Target services 
which address high 
levels of 
vulnerability eg 
Substance Misuse 
Services, 
Community Mental 
Health services, 
Wellbeing services 
 

Specify who is 
targeted for 
training 
 
Local residents 
Elected Members 
 
Frontline Police/ 
A+E staff/ 
Secondary MH 
services/ Schools/ 
Primary Care 

Communication 
Departments in all 
Key Stakeholder 
organisations 
 
Media Outlets 

Local Communities 
Police/ NWAS/ 
National Rail/ LA 
Planning 
Departments/ 
Local Travel 
Companies/ British 
transport Police 
 

Local Authorities 
Police 
Education 
3

rd
 Sector 

organisations 
Commissioners- 
Health and Public 
Health 
Prisons 
Probation 

Prisons, Police, 
Primary Care and 
Secondary MH 
Services, Local 
Authorities, 
Probation 

 
Output 

number of events 
during Suicide  
Prevention Day  
 
Time to Change 
Campaigns 
embedded across 
Las 
 
Suicide Audit data 

Measure increase 
in mental health 
awareness training 
delivered 
 
Contracts have 5 
Ways embedded 
 
Volunteer hours 
recorded across 

 Specify 
number of 
training 
sessions  

 Specify 
number of 
people trained  

 Suicide 
Prevention 
awareness 

At least one of the 
following media 
organisations will 
sign a suicide 
prevention pledge  
re responsible 
reporting  

 TV (That’s 
Lancashire 
Channel) 

Number of Suicide 
high risk locations 
that are identified 
and target 
hardened 
 
 

% of staff that are 
have attended 
ACE awareness 
training 
 
Number of services 
that are 
commissioned 
which include 
ACEs and are 

Clear pathway 
agreed for 
prisoners returning 
to Lancashire and 
South Cumbria to 
access MH 
Services 
 
Gaps identified 
 

P
age 19



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

publicised and 
shared 
 
Scoping exercise 
of debt services 
completed 
 
Consistent debt 
advice available 
across the STP 

the system 
 
Uptake of physical 
activity (PHOF?) 

training is 
integrated in to 
mandatory 
training for all 
stakeholders 
i.e. module 
within 
safeguarding 
training 

 All localities in 
LANCS + SC 
have a SP 
training 
programme 

 All LAs have 
an Elected 
Member  for 
Mental Health 
and suicide 
prevention  

 Newspaper  

 Radio  

monitoring them Agreed protocol 
signed up to by 
Prison/ probation 
and Services 

Activity 
 
 
 
 

 

To undertake 
suicide prevention 
awareness raising 
during world 
Suicide  Prevention 
Day   
 

To develop suicide 
prevention social 
marketing 
campaign material  

To deliver a “Time 
to Change” 
campaign as part 
of MH Awareness 
week  

Scoping of the 
level of debt advice 
support available 
across STP 

Write 5 Ways into 
all relevant new 
service 
specifications 
 
Measure volunteer 
hours across STP 
 
Monitor changes in 
PHOF physical 
activity data 
 
Partnership to 
develop wider 
mental health 
training capacity 
(eg use of e 
learning tools). 

Map out current ‘e’ 
learning suicide 
prevention training 
that is available/ 
being used  
 
 
To identify 
potential 
gatekeepers or 
champions for 
suicide prevention 
in local authorities,  
   
CCGs to allocate 
protected learning 
time sessions/ 1 
hour session for 
Suicide 
Awareness/ 
REACH training to 
programmed 
statutory 

To host a meeting 
with key media 
organisations 
which focuses on 
suicide awareness 
and responsible 
media reporting 

To relaunch the 
Samaritans media 
guidance   

Standardised 
guidance 
document 
produced for 
reporting of 
suicides 

Principles of the 
reporting guidance 
adopted by all key 
agencies 

 Identify Top 10 
high risk 
locations in 
Lancs and 
South Cumbria 

 Work with 
Network Rail, 
Coast Guard, 
BTP, 
Lancashire 
and Cumbria 
Police, 
Highways 
Agency, and 
Waterways 
Agency  to 
reduce access 
in the top 10 
high risk 
locations  

 Carry out 
Environmental 
Visual Audits 

Raise awareness 
of ACEs i.e. what 
they and the long 
lasting  impact they 
can have on CYP 

Include ACEs in 
future Suicide 
Audits 

Include ACEs in all 
relevant 
commissioned 
services that are 
being re designed 

 

Mapping of current 
pathway 

Gaps identified 

Offender Health 
Pathway protocol 
developed 

Key Stakeholders 
agree and sign up 
to protocol 

P
age 20



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

Identify gaps in 
debt/ money 
services 

Develop a 
standard/ universal 
approach to debt 
advice across the 
STP  

 

safeguarding 
training  
 
Develop a Suicide 
Prevention training 
programme which 
covers ACEs/ Self 
Harm/ MH First 
Aid/ ASSIST/ Safe 
Talk 
 

of high risk 
locations 

Input  LA PH Teams 
LA healthy living 
services  
 

Officer time LA PH 
teams and CCG 
 
Financial 
resources 
 
Data 
 

Officers Time 
 
Financial resource 
 

Samaritans 

Media 
organisations  

Communication 
departments in 
stakeholder 
organisations 

Officer time to 
produce the 
guidance and 
principles 

Senior Officers to 
agree and sign off  

 

Data 
 
Officer Time 
 
Financial resource 

ACE Training video 
 
Officer time to train 
staff 
 
 

Officer time to 
undertake mapping 
pathway work 
 
Financial resource 
 
Technology 

 
  

P
age 21



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

INTERVENTION   
 

Long Term 
Outcomes 

Reduction in suicides   
 

Reduction in self-harm  
 

Improved outcomes for those affected by 
suicide   

 

 

Intermediate 
Outcomes 

Intermediate Outcome 1 
A strong integrated Suicide Prevention Action 
Plan that is owned by all key stakeholders 

  

Outcome 2 
Elimination of suicides for in-patient and community 

mental health care settings 

Intermediate Outcome 3 
Clear pathway of care for CYP and Adults who 

Self Harm that meets NICE guidance 

 

Short Term 
Outcomes 
 

Short Term Outcome 11 
 
Preventing and responding to 
self-harm, ensuring care 
meets NICE guidance 

Short Term Outcome 12 
 
Adoption and full 
implementation of a 
Perfect Depression Care 
Pathway that meets 
NICE guidance 

Short Term Outcome 13 
 

High risk groups are 
effectively supported and 
risks minimised through 
effective protocols and 
safeguarding practices 

Short Term Outcome 14 
 

24/7 functioning CRHTT 
that are high CORE 

fidelity 

Short Term 
Outcome 15 
 
Liaison Mental 
Health Teams 
that meet CORE 
24 standards 

Short Term Outcome 
16 
 
Dual Diagnosis 
pathways, ensuring 
care meets NICE 
guidance (NG58) are 
agreed and 
implemented 

 
 
Signs of 
success 

Increased awareness among 
frontline workers regarding 
suicide risk factors and co-
morbidities 
 
All A&Es have undertaken an 
audit  
 
100% of patients presenting 
with self-harm have a full 
biopsychosocial assessment 
 
No of services that are NICE 
compliant identified 
 
LMH teams in acute hospitals 
have CYP specialists 
 

All patients receive 
NICE compliant 
treatment for depression 

Reduced suicide ideation 
and behaviour 
 
Increased use of 
comprehensive risk and 
clinical assessments 
 
Increased family 
engagement and 
involvement in care 
 
Increased capacity for 
working with a person with 
suicidal thoughts  
 
Increased access to 
support for those not open 
to MH services 

24/7 Crisis Care 
available for CYP and 
Adults that are high 
performing CORE 
fidelity teams. 
 
CRHT teams meet the 
NHS National Standards 
set out in the MH FYFV 

CORE 24 LMH 
teams in each of 
the 4 Acute 
hospitals across 
Lancs and SC 
that also provide 
specialist CYP 
support 
 
LMH teams 
meet NHS 
England 
National 
Standards for 
CORE 24 that 
are set out in 
the MH FYFV 

 

Dual Diagnosis 
pathway fully 
implemented and 
embedded into 
working practice 
 
Increased awareness 
of MH and Drug – 
Staff aware of the 
most appropriate 
pathways into 
service 
 
Service/Pathway 
meets NICE 
Guidance 
 
All workforce are 

P
age 22



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

Self-Harm pathway mapped 
out for CYP and Adults 
 
Self-Harm Service gaps 
identified 

  confident to take on 
dual diagnosis role 
(Both MH and 
Substance Misuse 
Staff) 

Reach A&E Departments, NWAS, 
3

rd
 Sector organisations, 

Lancashire Police, CYP 
services, Commissioners, 
LAs, Schools 

MH Trusts, GPs, CCG 
Commissioners, IAPT 
services 
 

A&E Departments, NWAS, 
Primary Care, MH Trusts, 
families and those with 
lived experience , Housing, 
Substance Misuse services 
 

Local Communities 
LCFT 
Police 
NWAS 

Acute Hospitals, 
Primary Care, 
LCFT, 
Commissioners 

Drug and Alcohol 
Services, Secondary 
Care, Service Users 

 
Output 

Number of A&E’s have an 
audit of % of patients who 
present with self-harm who 
have had a full 
biopsychosocial assessment   
 
Number of services that are 
Self harm treatment 
compliant 
 
Increase in CYP resilience 
 

LCFT/ CFT and 
respective 
commissioners have 
signed up to delivering 
the perfect depression 
care pathway 
 
No of GP practises that 
meet NICE compliance 
 
Baseline established of 
the number of people 
who are currently being 
treated with anti-
depressants 
 
Baseline established for 
the number of PHQ 9 
forms that are 
completed  

Accessible services that 
are available 24 hours/ 7 
days a week 
 
Increased improvement in 
Suicide Awareness 
 
Increase in the number of 
people trained 

24/7 fully resourced 
CRHTT that is 
accessible to CYP and 
Adults 

LMH teams 
meet CORE 24 
standards 

Number of staff that 
are trained in dual 
diagnosis  
 
Increase number of 
jointly managed 
cases by drug and 
MH services 

Activity Establish current level of self-
harm rates across Lancs and 
SC 
 
To identify “ frequent” self-
harmers accessing A&E 
Departments and NWAS  
 
To review current self-harm  
support and interventions for 
adults and young people in 
LANCS + SC  

To baseline data relating 

to services for 

depression, that is IAPT, 

antidepressant 

prescribing and suicide 

rates by postcode, 

evidence of application 

of NICE guidelines 

across primary and 

secondary care and 

days lost in employment 

Review and modify current 
risk and clinical 
assessment tools to ensure 
consistency and 
comprehensiveness in MH 
Trusts   
 
To pilot a minimum/optimal 
standard for suicide risk 
assessment tools in 
primary care  

To develop crisis care 
arrangements  to enable 
access to 24/7 support 
for all-age groups 
particularly children  
 
To ensure that CRHTT 
are high CORE fidelity 
teams  
 
 

To develop LMH 
implementation 
plan for 2018/ 
2019  
 
Implement a 
Liaison Mental 
health team 
which has CYP 
specialists in 
Acute hospitals  
 

Establish current 
baseline 
 
Develop dual 
diagnosis pathway 
that meets NICE 
Guidance  
 
Pathway signed off 
and agreed by MH 
steering group  
 

P
age 23



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

 
To undertake an audit in 
each A&E  of implementation 
of Nice guidance relating to 
self-harm and psychological 
assessments in A&E  
 
To review local self-harm 
care pathways against NICE 
guidance (CG133)  

  
To deliver suicide prevention 
and self-harm training for 
staff  
 
To develop am information 
sharing system between 
NWAS and LA PH teams re 
number of attempted 
suicide/self-harm  
 
To develop a consistent 
system of sharing data with 
GPs from A&E and NWAS ( 
 
To develop a consistent 
response with primary care to 
those patients flagged as 
attempted suicide/self-harm 
from A&E and NWAS  
 
 

in Lancs and SC  

 

To design with patients 

and stakeholders a 

‘perfect depression care 

pathway’ with key 

outcomes  

 
To secure sign up 
across all MH Trust  
providers and 
commissioners (mental 
health) for 
commissioning of this 
care pathway 

 
Establish a baseline for 
the number of patients 
that are currently being 
treated with anti-
depressants and that 
the care meets NICE 
guidelines 

To develop a Lancs+ SC 
standard for suicide 
prevention in secondary 
care  

To develop a process to 
enable learning from 
suicide attempts  

Consult and engage with 
families of  those with 
suicidal  ideation  

 
To standardise post-
incident reviews, share best 
practice, lessons learned 
and review 
recommendations to 
ensure that they are 
implemented 

To strengthen the 
management of depression 
in primary care  

To review local  care 
pathways against Antenatal 
and postnatal mental 
health: clinical 
management and service 
guidance NICE guidance 
(CG192)  

To recruit staff 
to meet CORE 
24 LMH 
standards  

Pathway embedded 
into working 
practices 
 
 

Inputs  Data analysists A&E 

departments and NWAS, 

NHS England CORE 24 

funding 

Commissioners, MH 
Trusts, GPs, IAPT 

Staff time to conduct audit 
of current policies 

CCG Commissioner 
funding, LCFT 

CORE 24 
Transformation 
funding 
(2018/19), Acute 
Hospitals, A+E 
Delivery Boards, 
LCFT, 
Commissioners 

CCG Commissioner 
funding, LA Public 
Health 
Commissioners, 
Drug and Alcohol 
Services, Secondary 
MH services 

 
 

P
age 24



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

  

P
age 25



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

 

POSTVENTION  
 

Long Term 
Outcomes 

Reduction in suicides   
 

Reduction in self-harm  
 

Improved outcomes for those affected by 
suicide   

 

 

Intermediate 
Outcomes 

Intermediate Outcome 4 
Effective support to those who are affected/bereaved by suicide 

 

 

Short Term 
Outcomes 

Short Term Outcome 17 
 
All those bereaved by suicide will be offered timely and 
appropriate information and offered support by specialist 
bereavement services within 72 hours 
 
 

 

 Short Term Outcome 18 
 

All identified suicide clusters have a community response plan and 
schools have a post suicide intervention protocol in place 

 
 
Signs of 
success 

 
Specialist suicide bereavement service commissioned across Lancs 
and South Cumbria 
 
Increased number of those bereaved by suicide can access 
mainstream MH services/ Support  
 
 

  
Reduction in the number of cluster suicides incidents 
 
Post Suicide Intervention adopted in all schools across Lancs and SC 
 
 

Reach Those bereaved by suicide,  Commissioners of MH services, 
Commissioners of bereavement services/ Coroners/ Police/ NWAS/ 
Public Health Leads/ Las/ Prisons/ LCFT/ CFT 
 

 Coroner/ LA PH Leads, Police and specific stakeholders based on the 
circumstances/ need that are identified 

 
Output 

Bereavement Support services mapped out 
 
Gaps identified 
 
Increase in the no of Help is at Hand books given out by services 
 
Specialist Suicide Bereavement Service specification developed 
 
Consistent Referral for Suicide Bereavement adopted by 

 Key Leads identified in each organisation 

Standardised documents and process agreed for developing Community 
Response Action Plan 

P
age 26



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

Stakeholders 
 

Activity 
 
 
 
 
 

To review what services are currently available/ commissioned 
across Lancs+ SC for people that are bereaved by Suicide 

Develop an online directory of services and resources for those 
affected by Suicide including ADFAM, Samaritan, MIND ED etc. 

Develop a consistent approach taken by all key stakeholders for 
signposting, advice provided and support offered to those affected by 
suicide 

To consult with those bereaved by suicide to develop a Lancs and SC 
suicide bereavement pathway. 

To scope the potential for additional commissioning of suicide 
bereavement support to supplement local arrangements  

 
To scope current arrangements across Lancs and SC in relation to 
post-vention interventions, e.g. schools, communities and outreach to 
family and friends, in addition to bereavement support  

To upskill current bereavement support services so they are able to 
offer/ provide specialist suicide support to those affected by suicide  

 

 Review PHE Guidance for developing Community Cluster Action Plans 

 

Develop Standardised Suicide Prevention Community Cluster Action Plan 
procedure 

Define what is meant by a suicide cluster i.e. 2 or more/ same modus 
operandi (MO) 

All key stakeholders sign up, agree and implement procedure 

 

Development of post suicide intervention protocol in schools 

Input Help is at Hand  

Staff Time 
 
Funding for Specialist service identified 
 
 

  Staff 

Financial 

 

P
age 27



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

INTELLIGENCE 
 

Long Term 
Outcomes 

Reduction in suicides   
 

Reduction in self-harm  
 

Improved outcomes for those affected by 
suicide   

 

 
 

Intermediate 
Outcomes 

Intermediate Outcome 6 
Improved use of evidence, data and intelligence 

 

 

Short Term 
Outcomes 

Short Term  Outcome 19 
To establish a data collection and 

evaluation system to track progress  
 
 

Short Term Outcome 20 
A consistent Suicide Audit 

template and schedule is agreed 
by all LAs 

Short Term Outcome 21 
To have a ‘Real-Time Data’ 

surveillance system across Lancs+ 
SC re suicide and attempts and drug 

related deaths 
 

Short Term Outcome 22 
Sharing lessons learnt, best practice 
and recommendations from Serious 

Case Reviews/ Child Death Overview 
and Domestic Homicide Reviews 

 

 

 
 
Signs of 
success  

Performance Management 
framework which monitors 
interventions and impact on 
Suicides across Lancs and SC 

A consistent suicide audit data 
collection method which is 
adopted across Lancs and SC  
 
Regular Suicide Audits are 
conducted across Lancs and SC 

Real time data Suicide and 
attempted  suicide, drug related 
death Surveillance system in place 
 
Signed and agreed information 
sharing protocol 
 
Key stakeholders have an increased 
awareness of the suicide picture 
across Lancs and SC 
 

Agencies have an increased 
awareness lessons learnt from 
Serious Case Reviews and Child 
Death Overview and Domestic 
Homicide Reviews 

Reach Suicide Prevention Oversight 
Board, STP Governance, NHS 
England, PH England 

LA Public Health Leads 
Coroners 
Police 

Police, NWAS, LA PH Leads, 
Coroners, Commissioners, 
Substance Misuse providers, GPs, 
LA Safeguarding Leads, LA Suicide 
Prevention Groups, STP partners, 
Information Governance Leads 

Local Safeguarding Boards (Adults 
and CYP), Local Authorities/ Primary 
and Secondary Health services, 
NWAS/ Police/ Prison/ Probation/ 
CCGs 

 
Output 

Quarterly performance reports  Consistent data collection across 
Lancs and SC 
 
Suicide Audit Timetable agreed 

Joint information sharing protocol 
 
Real time data available for Public 
Health Leads in each LA 

Standardised process for sharing the 
lessons learnt  
 
 

P
age 28



Appendix 4 (a) 

 

 
Suicide Audit report produced 
across the STP footprint every 3 
years 

 
Responsive coordination and 
collection of suicide, attempted 
suicides and drug related deaths 
information 
 
Regular reports provided to STP 
Governance Board, LA Safeguarding 
Boards (Adult and CYP) 
 

Activity Develop a performance 
management framework that is able 
to track progress made against the 
action plan 
 
Produce reporting template that can 
be used in CCG IAF submissions. 
 
Stakeholder agree data sources 
that will be used for performance 
monitoring 
 
 

Review the current suicide audits 

templates that are currently being 

used for data collection across 

Lancs and SC (LA PH Leads, 

Sept 2017) 

Develop Suicide Audit template 

(LA PH Leads, Sept 2017) 

Develop Suicide audit timetable 

which is agreed by all LA PH 

leads (LA PH Leads, Sept 2017) 

Feasibility scoping exercise 
conducted for implementation of a 
‘Real Time Suicide Surveillance 
system (Neil Smith- October 2017) 
 
Consistent data collection process 
agreed 
 
Develop information sharing 
protocols 
 
Mapping of current data that is 
collected around suicide, attempted 
suicides and drug related deaths 
 
 

To standardise post-incident reviews, 
share best practice, lessons learned 
and review recommendations to 
ensure that they are implemented 
 

Inputs  Data Analyst,  

All Key Stakeholders,  

Staffing,  

Technology 

Staffing capacity 
Technology 

Data Analyst Time 
Staffing 
Technology 
Financial  

Staffing 
Technology 
Financial 

 
 

 
 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: ADULT  SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: 
David Bonson, Chief Operating Officer,  
Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 

Date of Meeting:  24 January 2018 

 

BLACKPOOL CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP MID YEAR 
PERFORMANCE REPORT (APRIL 2017 TO SEPTEMBER 2017) 

 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 
 

To consider the mid-year performance of the Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 
for 2017-2018 (April 2017 - September 2017). 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 
 
2.2 
 
2.3 

To receive and scrutinise the report. 
 
To make any recommendations to the Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group. 
 
To determine any future reporting from the Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 
on the issues / identify any topics for further consideration by the Committee. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 
 
3.2 
 

To ensure constructive and robust scrutiny of the mid-year health performance report 
in relation to commissioned hospital services. 
 
To note the reported exceptions and support the Blackpool Clinical Commissioning 
Group in its actions to improve performance. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

N/A 

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:  None 

  
 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is: 
“Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience”. 
 

5.0 Background information 
 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr David Bonson, Chief Operating Officer, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 
will be in attendance at the meeting to present the 2017-2018 mid-year performance 
summary and answer any questions on performance against the national NHS 
measures: including NHS Constitution measures such as referral to treatment; cancer 
waiting times; mixed sex accommodation breaches and cancelled operations. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices:  

 Appendix 5 (a): Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group  
Mid-year Performance Report 2017-2018. 

 

  

8.0 Legal considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 
 

9.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None 

10.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

10.1 
 

None 
 

11.0 Financial considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None 
 

12.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

12.1 None 
 

13.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

13.1 None 

Page 32



 

14.0 Internal/External Consultation undertaken: 
 

14.1 
 

N/A 
 

15.0 Background papers: 
 

15.1 None 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 14 

Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 

Mid Year Performance 

Report 2017/18  

April 2017 - September 2017 

Appendix 5 (a)

Page 35



Health Scrutiny  Committee   

Mid-Year Summary 2017-18 
  

Page 2 of 14 

Introduction 
This report is to provide the Health Scrutiny Committee with assurance in relation to the indicators within the national 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Assurance Framework. The report includes a mid-year summary of all the relevant 
indicators, as published by NHS England, with an exception narrative for any indicators not meeting the requisite target. 

Summary for Mid-Year 2017/18 

Metric Mid-Year Position Target 
Page 
No. 

NHS Constitution Measures 

Referral to Treatment (RTT) Incompletes (c) 
89.25% 

 
≥92% 4 

Diagnostic Test Waiting Time (c) 0.60% ≤1% 4 

A&E waits (c) 83.95% ≥95% 4 

Patients seen within 2 weeks of a GP referral for suspected cancer 94.14% ≥93% 5 

Patients seen within 2 weeks of a GP referral for breast cancer symptoms 93.64% ≥93% 5 

Patients receiving definitive treatment within 1 month of a cancer diagnosis (c) 94.40% ≥96% 5 

Patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days (Surgery) (c) 95.73% ≥94% 5 

Patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days (Drugs) (c) 100% ≥98% 5 

Patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days (Radiotherapy) (c) 99.35% ≥94% 5 

Patients receiving 1
st
 definitive treatment for cancer within 2 months (c) 76.25% ≥85% 5 

Patients receiving treatment for cancer within 62 days from an NHS Screening Service 
(c) 

79.27% ≥90% 5 

Patients receiving treatment for cancer 62 days upgrading their priority (c) 90.00% ≥85% 5 

Red 1 Ambulance Calls (c) 

No data available due to 
a change in reporting 

≥75% 6 

Red 2 Ambulance Calls (c) ≥75% 6 

Category A Ambulance Calls (c) ≥95% 6 

 
NHS Constitution Support Measure 

Referral to Treatment waiting times more than 52 weeks (incomplete) (c) 1 0 
 

4 

A&E waits 12 hour trolley waits (p) 6 0 4 

Mixed Sex accommodation breaches (c) 10 0 6 

Cancelled Operations (p) 4 0 6 

Mental Health (c) 96.00% ≥95.73% 7 

Primary Care Dementia (c) 80.80% ≥67% 7 

Incidence of Healthcare Associated Infection (c) 
MRSA – 1 

C-Diff - 20 

 

See Page 
7  

7 

Financial Sanctions 

Possible Sanctions excluding Admitted and  Non-Admitted RTT September 2017 
  

£3,011,410.00 
 
 Overall Summary of Blackpool CCG Improvement and Assessment Indicators January Position 

 
Page 14 

 

 

 

Page 36



Health Scrutiny  Committee   

Mid-Year Summary 2017-18 
  

Page 3 of 14 

Achievements 

 

 The % of patients waiting 6 weeks or more for diagnostic tests has remained below the target of <1% from April to September 

2017. The mid-year performance figure is 0.60%.  

 Blackpool CCG cancer waits have met six (6) out of nine (9) constitutional targets by the end of quarter 2 in September 2017. 

 The % of patients on a care programme approach discharged and followed up within 7 days has remained above target for 

the first half of 2017. 

 The Clostridium difficile incidents for both Blackpool CCG and Blackpool Teaching Hospitals remain within trajectory for 

2017/18. 

 There have been no incidents of MRSA bacteremia at Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust between April and 

September 2017. 

 Improving access to psychological therapies have achieved all targets by September 2017. 

 

 

Areas for focus / information 

 
 Blackpool CCG (BCCG) has not met the RTT target for incomplete pathways at this mid-year point; performance has been 

influenced by the continued effects from health economy system pressures experienced in the Winter months. 
 

 There was one Blackpool CCG patient waiting more than 52 weeks in June, a Trauma and Orthopedics patient at the 
Countess of Chester Hospital. Delays in treatment were related to a complex patient pathway. 

 Blackpool Teaching Hospitals’ performance against the 4 hour A&E waiting time target has remained below target since April 
2017 and is 83.95% year to date in September, below the target of 95%.  

 The Trust has had a total of 6 12-hour breaches between April 2017 and September 2017. Root Cause Analyses have been 
received for all breaches in line with national policy in order to provide assurance and an understanding of lessons learned. 

 

 The percentage of cancer patients waiting for their first definitive treatment following one month from a cancer diagnosis 
has not achieved the target of 96% and is reported as 94.40% year to date position at September 2017. 

 
 The percentage of cancer patients waiting no more than 62 days from urgent GP referrals to first definitive treatment has not 

achieved the target of 85% by September, performance stands at 76.25%. 
 

 The percentage of patients waiting no more than 62 days from referral from an NHS screening service to first definitive treatment 
has not achieved the target of 90%. In September the year to date performance is 79.27%.  

 
 All improving access to psychological therapy targets have been achieved by September 2017. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Key 

 Failing target  Improving and within target  Improving and below target 

 Target Achieved  Deteriorating and within target  Deteriorating and below target 

(c) / (p) Commissioner level / Provider level  No change and within target  No change and below target 

Page 37



Month 6: September 2016 

  

Page 4 of 14 

Health Scrutiny Committee  
Mid Year Summary 2017-18 

NHS Constitution for period 1 April to 30 September 2017 
 

 

 

 
RTT (c) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

Target 

 
 
 

Mid year 
position 

 

 
Performance 
(April - Sept) No. of Breaches 

* Patients on incomplete pathways treated within 

18 weeks 

 
CCG 

 
≥ 92% 

 
89.25%  351 excess  

breaches 

Patients waiting for 
more  than 52 

weeks 

 
Incomplete  pathway 

 

CCG 

 

0 

 

1  1 

 
Blackpool CCG (BCCG) has not met the return to treatment target by the 30

th
 of September 2017 for incomplete pathways.  

Performance has been influenced by the continued effects from system pressures experienced in the winter months. There was one 
Blackpool CCG patient waiting more than 52 weeks in June, a Trauma and Orthopedics patient at the Countess of Chester Hospital. 
Delays in treatment were related to a complex patient pathway. 

 

 

 
Diagnostic Test Waiting Time (c) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

Target 

 
 
 

Mid 
 year 

position 

 

 
Performance 
(April-Sept) No. of Breaches 

% of patients waiting 6 weeks or more 
 

CCG 
 

≤ 1% 
 

0.60%  63 

 
Diagnostic waiting times have remained within target since between the 1

st
 of April and the 30th September 2017. 

 
 

 
A&E Waits (c) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

Target 

 
 
 

Mid year 
position 

 

 
Performance 
(April-Sept) No. of Breaches 

*4 Hour A&E Waiting  Time   Target 
 

CCG ≥ 95% 
 

 
83.95%  15,488 

Blackpool Teaching Hospitals’ performance against the 4 hour A&E waiting time target has remained below target between the 1st April 
and the 30th September 2017. An NHSE (Lancashire) escalation process remains in place with daily and weekly updates being 
followed in addition to local and regional teleconferences. Nationally the position replicates the issues being experienced locally and 
regionally.  

 

 
12 Hour Trolley waits in A&E (p) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

Target 

 
 
 

Mid year 
position 

 

 
Performance 
(April-Sept) No. of Breaches 

12 Hour Trolley  waits in A&E 
 

Provider - BTH 
 

0 
 

6  6 

 
The Trust continues to experience significantly increased pressure within the A and E department and resultant pressure on bed 
availability; this is reflected within the current national picture. The delayed transfer of care position continues to be extremely challenging. 
The Trust has had a total of 6 12-hour breaches between April and September 2017. Root Cause Analyses have been received for all 
breaches in line with National policy and in order to provide assurance and an understanding of lessons learned. The position has been 
escalated through all appropriate reporting channels.  
 

 
 

 
Key 

 Failing target  Improving and within target  Improving and below target 

 Target Achieved  Deteriorating and within target  Deteriorating and below target 

(c) / (p) Commissioner level / Provider level  No change and within target  No change and below target 

Page 38



Month 6: September 2016 

  

Page 5 of 14 

Health Scrutiny Committee  
Mid Year Summary 2017-18 

 
 
  
 

 
 
Cancer Waits (c) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

Target 

 
 
 

 

Mid Year 
Position 

 
 

Performance 
(April - Sept) 

 

 
No. of 

Breaches 

% seen within 2 weeks of referral CCG ≥ 93% 
94.14%  187 

% seen within 2 weeks of referral – breast 
symptoms 

 
CCG 

 
≥ 93% 93.64% 

18 

 
3

1
 D

a
y
s
  

% of patients receiving definitive 

treatment 

 
CCG 

 
≥ 96% 94.40% 

30 

% of patients waiting no more than 31 
days for subsequent treatment 

– surgery 

 

CCG 

 

≥ 94% 
95.73%  5 

% of patients waiting no more than 31 

days for subsequent treatment - drug 

therapy 

 

CCG 

 

≥ 98% 
100.00% 



 0 

% of patients waiting no more than 31 
days for subsequent treatment 

– radiotherapy 

 

CCG 

 

≥ 94% 
99.35% 

 
 1 

 
6

2
 D

a
y
s
 

* % of patients waiting no more than 

62 days from urgent GP 
referrals to first definitive treatment 

 

CCG 

 

≥ 85% 
76.25% 

 
 57 

% of patients waiting no more than 62 

days from referral from an NHS 

screening service to first definitive 

treatment. 

 

 
CCG 

 

 
≥ 90% 79.27% 

 
 17 

% of patients waiting no more than 62 

days for first definitive treatment 

following a consultant's decision to 

upgrade. 

 

 
CCG 

 

 
≥85% 90.00% 

 
 12 

Six of the nine constitutional targets for cancer waits have been met as at the 30th September 2017; the exception being the 
percentage of patients receiving definitive treatment within 31 days and the percentage of patients waiting no more than 62 days 
from urgent GP referral to first definitive treatment. The number of patients breaching within the 31 days for first definitive treatment 
following a cancer diagnosis are small. The reasons for these breaches are varied but include patient choice, complex diagnostic 
pathways and medical reasons. Patients breaching the national timescales for receiving first definitive treatment no more than 62 
days from an urgent GP referral do so for very similar reasons to those breaching the 31 day target. A Lancashire wide NHSE 
initiative is currently being rolled out to improve this target progress against which will be reported within the next health scrutiny 
report. The screening performance was affected by an acceleration of the breast screening programme within the Fylde coast.  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Key 

 Failing target  Improving and within target  Improving and below target 

 Target Achieved  Deteriorating and within target  Deteriorating and below target 

(c) / (p) Commissioner level / Provider level  No change and within target  No change and below target 

 
 
 

Page 39



Month 6: September 2016 

  

Page 6 of 14 

Health Scrutiny Committee  
Mid Year Summary 2017-18 

Ambulance Performance Reporting 
 

National ambulance performance standards were previously measured by response times to red 1 and 2 calls within 8 mins for 75% of the 
time and 95% of all red calls receiving a response within 19 minutes.  
The implementation of Ambulance Performance Reporting has brought a complete change in how calls are classified and significant 
changes to NWAS’ Computer Aided Dispatch system (CAD). NWAS are no longer able to report on performance under the old measures 
and therefore cannot be directly compared against the new standards. The new Ambulance Quality Indicators will be phased in with a 
trajectory agreed with NHS England and local commissioners, the intention being that all services are reporting to the new standards by the 
end of November 2017.  
NWAS have advised that the service response model needs to adapt to the new system and will require a review of the ambulance 
resource model and take time to embed before the full benefits are realised.   

 
 

 
Mixed Sex 

Accommodation 

Breaches (c) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

Target 

 
 

 

Mid Year 
Position 

 
 

 
Performance 

(April - Sept) 

 

 
 
No. of Breaches 

 
 

Breaches of same sex 

accommodation 

BCCG 0 10  10 

Provider - BTH 0 4  4 

Provider - Spire 0 0     0 

 

 All of the breaches which occurred between April and September 2017 were due to the lack of suitable specialist beds being available 
other than within the critical care unit. Four of the mixed sex accommodation breaches occurred at Blackpool Teaching Hospitals, five 
occurred at Lancashire Teaching Hospitals and one at University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay. The CCG has been assured in all breaches 
that the privacy and dignity of the patients was maintained at all times. 

 
 

Cancelled 

Operations (p) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

Target 

 
 

 

Mid Year 
Position 

 
 

 
Performance 

(April - Sept) 

 

 
No. of 

Breaches 

Patients whose operations are cancelled, 

on or after the day of admission 

(including the day of surgery), for non-

clinical reasons to be offered another 

binding date 

within 28 days. 

 
 

 
Provider - BTH 0 4 

 

 
 4 

    
There have been four (4) cancelled operations reported at Blackpool Teaching Hospitals between April and September 2017; this is due to 
the cancellation of elective activity within the hospital and reduced bed capacity due to winter pressures. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Key 

 Failing target  Improving and within target  Improving and below target 

 Target Achieved  Deteriorating and within target  Deteriorating and below target 

(c) / (p) Commissioner level / Provider level  No change and within target  No change and below target 

Page 40



Month 6: September 2016 

  

Page 7 of 14 

Health Scrutiny Committee  
Mid Year Summary 2017-18 

 

 
The % of Mental Health patients on a CPA discharged and followed up within 7 days has remained above target 
between April and September 2017. 

 
 
 

Dementia (c) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

National 

 
 

 

Mid Year 
Position 

 
 

 
Performance 

(April - Sept) 

 

 
No. of 

Breaches 

CCG’s estimated  prevalence for people 

over 65 with dementia against the CCG’s 

actual dementia diagnosis rate 

 

 
CCG 

 

 
≥ 67% 

 

 
80.80%  348 

 
The CCG’s estimated prevalence for people over 65 with dementia against the actual diagnosis has remained 
significantly above target between April and September 2017. 

 
 

Incidence of Healthcare 

Associated Infection (c) 

 
 

Organisation 

(assigned) 

 
 
 

Threshold 

 
 

 

Mid Year 
Position 

 
 

 
Performance 

(April - 
Sept) 

 

 
No. of Breaches 

 
 
 

Incidence  of MRSA bacteremia 

 
CCG 

 
0 

 
1  1 

 
Provider 

 
0 

 
0 


0 

 
 

 
Incidence of Clostridium difficile* 

(CDI) 

 

 
CCG 

 

58 
(2016/17) 

 

 
20  20 

 

 
BTH 

 

 

40 
(2016/17) 

 

 
20  20 

* Data source; Public Health England HCAI Monthly Reports, throughout 2016/17. 
 

The table above shows the breakdown by month and split between CCG and Trust apportioned cases of MRSA bacteraemia and 
Clostridium difficile infections (CDI). 
 
Clostridium difficile infections - Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
From the 1st April 2017 to the 30th September 2017 twenty incidents of C-Difficile have been reported by Blackpool Teaching 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (BTH). The C-Difficile trajectory for Blackpool Teaching Hospitals for 2017/18 remains the same 
as 2016/17 (40 cases) and BTH are within trajectory. 
 
Summary of C-DIifficile– Blackpool CCG 
From the 1st April 2017 to the 30th September 2017 twenty incidents of CDI were attributed to Blackpool CCG. The CDI trajectory 
for Blackpool CCG for 2017/18 remains the same as 2016/17 (58 cases) and the CCG is within trajectory. There has been one 
case attributed to Blackpool CCG in August 2017. 
 
 

 
 

 

 
Mental Health (c) 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 
 
 

Target 

 
 

 

Mid Year 
Position 

 
 

 
Performance 

(April - Sept) 

 

 
No. of 

Breaches 

% of Mental Health patients on Care 

Programme  Approach (CPA) discharged 

from hospital and followed up within 7 

days 

 

 
Provider - LCFT 

 

 
≥ 95% 

 

 
96.00% 

 


 
8 

Page 41



Month 6: September 2016 

  

Page 8 of 14 

Health Scrutiny Committee  
Mid Year Summary 2017-18 

MRSA bacteraemia - Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 
There were no incidents of MRSA bacteraemia reported from the 1st April 2017 to the 30th September 2017 at Blackpool Teaching 
Hospitals.  

 
 

Mental Health Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies 

 
 
 

Organisation 

 

E
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
  

 

 

Mid Year 
Position 

 
 

 
Performance (April - 

Sept) 

 

 
No of excess 

Breaches 

IAPT access proportion rate (3.75% 

quarterly, suggested 1.25% 

monthly) 

 
CCG 

≥ 1.25% 

monthly 
1.46% 


0 

*IAPT  recovery rate (50% monthly) CCG 50% 52.8%  0 

The  proportion of people that wait 6 

weeks or less from referral to their  

first IAPT  treatment appointment 

CCG 
 

75% per 

month 94.5%  0 

The proportion of people that wait 18 
weeks or less from referral to 
entering a course of IAPT treatment. 

CCG 
 

95% per 

month 100%  0 

    
Waiting times and access proportion rates have consistently met targets for IAPT between the 1st April 2017 and the 
30th September 2017.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



Health Scrutiny 
Mid Year Summary 2016-17 

 
 

Page 9 of 14 

 

 

Performance Scorecard   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Metric Lev el Period Target April 
2017 

May 
2017 

June 
2017 

July 
2017 

Aug 
2017 

Sept 
2017 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2017 

Jan 
2018 

Feb 
2018 

March 
2018 

YTD 

NHS Constitution measures 

Referral To Treatment waiting times for non-urgent consultant-led treatment 

62: Referral to Treatment (Non- 
Admitted) 

CCG Sept 2017 95% 91.29% 90.74% 90.50% 89.10% 90.10% 89.41%       90.17% 

1291: Referral to Treatment 
(Incomplete) 

CCG Sept 2017 92% 90.43% 89.86% 89.39% 88.66% 88.40% 88.80%       89.25% 

Diagnostic test waiting times 

1828: % of patients waiting 6 
weeks or more for a diagnostic test  

CCG Sept 2017 1% 0.16% 0.74% 1.14% 0.74% 0.46% 0.39%       0.60% 

Cancer waits – 2 Week Wait 

191: % Patients seen within two 
weeks for an urgent GP referral for 

suspected cancer (MONTHLY) 

CCG Sept 2017 93% 94.17% 93.57% 94.39% 95.65% 93.12% 94.13%       94.14% 

17: % of patients seen within 2 
weeks for an urgent referral for 
breast symptoms (MONTHLY) 

CCG Sept 2017 93% 100.00% 96.23% 92.50% 80.43% 94.34% 97.44%       93.64% 

P
age 43



Health Scrutiny 
Mid Year Summary 2016-17 

 
 

Page 10 of 14 

 

Metric Lev el Period Target April 
2017 

May 
2017 

June 
2017 

July 
2017 

Aug 
2017 

Sept 
2017 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2017 

Jan 
2018 

Feb 
2018 

March 
2018 

YTD 

NHS Constitution measures 

Cancer waits – 31 days 

535: % of patients 
receiving definitive 

treatment within 1 month 
of a cancer diagnosis 

(MONTHLY) 

CCG Sept 2017 96% 100.00% 95.65% 95.19% 89.89% 92.11% 96.15%       94.40% 

26: % of patients receiving 

subsequent treatment for 

cancer within 31 days 

(Surgery) (MONTHLY) 

CCG Sept 2017 94% 93.75% 90.91% 92.86% 100.00% 100.00% 94.44%       95.73% 

1170: % of patients 
receiving subsequent 

treatment for cancer within 
31 days (Drug Treatments) 

(MONTHLY)  

CCG Sept 2017 98% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%       100.00% 

25: % of patients 
receiving subsequent 
treatment for cancer 

within 31 days 
(Radiotherapy 
Treatments) 
MONTHLY)  

CCG Sept 2017 94% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 95.65% 100.00%       99.35% 

Cancer waits – 62 days 

539: % of patients receiving 

1st definitive treatment for 

cancer within 2 months(62 

days) (MONTHLY) 

CCG Sept 2017 85% 80.77% 75.00% 74.36% 72.22% 85.71% 67.57%       76.25% 

540: % of patients receiving 
treatment for cancer within 

62 days from an NHS Cancer 
Screening Service 

(MONTHLY)  

CCG Sept 2017 90% 100.00% 90.91% 84.62% 52.38% 82.61% 100.00%       79.27% 

P
age 44



Health Scrutiny 
Mid Year Summary 2016-17 

 
 

Page 11 of 14 

541: % of patients 
receiving treatment for 
cancer within 62 days 
upgrade their priority 

(MONTHLY) 

CCG Sept 2017 85% 100.00% 93.33% 96.00% 78.95% 92.31% 80.00%       90.00% 

 

Metric Lev el Period Target 
April 
2017 

May 
2017 

June 
2017 

July 
2017 

Aug 
2017 

Sept 
2017 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2017 

Jan 
2018 

Feb 
2018 

March 
2018 

YTD 

NHS Constitution measures continued 

Category A ambulance calls             

1887: Category A Calls 
Response Time (Red1) 

CCG Sept 2017 75% Not currently reporting        

1887: Category A Calls 
Response Time (Red1) 

NWAS Sept 2017 75% Not currently reporting        

1889: Category A (Red 2) 8 
Minute Response Time 

CCG Sept 2017 75% Not currently reporting        

1889: Category A (Red 2) 8 
Minute Response Time 

NWAS Sept 2017 75% Not currently reporting        

546: Category A calls 
responded to within 19 

minutes 
CCG Sept 2017 95% Not currently reporting        

546: Category A calls 
responded to within 19 

minutes 

NWAS Sept 2017 95% Not currently reporting        

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 45



Health Scrutiny 
Mid Year Summary 2016-17 

 
 

Page 12 of 14 

 
NHS Constitution support measures 

Mixed Sex Accommodation Breaches 

1067: Mixed sex 
accommodation breaches - 
All Providers 

CCG Sept 2017 0 0 0 1 3 5 1       10 

Mental Health 

138: Proportion of patients on 

(CPA) discharged from 

inpatient care who are followed 

up within 7 days 

CCG 
QTR 3 
2016 

95% 
96.26% 

(Q1) 
94.81% 

(Q2)   95.53% 

 
Metric Lev el Period Target April 

2017 
May 
2017 

June 
2017 

July 
2017 

Aug 
2017 

Sept 
2017 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2017 

Jan 
2018 

Feb 
2018 

March 
2018 

YTD 

NHS Constitution support measures 

Referral To Treatment waiting times for non-urgent consultant-led treatment 

1839: Referral to Treatment 
- No of Incomplete Pathways 

Waiting >52 weeks 

CCG Sept 2017 0 0 0 1 0 0 0       1 

A&E waits             

1928: 12 Hour  waits in    A&E 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

(B
T

H
) 

Sept 2017 0 5 0 0 0 0 0       5 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 46



Health Scrutiny 
Mid Year Summary 2016-17 

 
 

Page 13 of 14 

Metric Lev el Period Target April 
2017 

May 
2017 

June 
2017 

July 
2017 

Aug 
2017 

Sept 
2017 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2017 

Jan 
2018 

Feb 
2018 

March 
2018 

YTD 

A&E waits 

1926: A&E Attendances: 

Type 1 
BTH 

Sept 
2017 

Actual 7,141 7,588 7,262 7,742 7,491 7,098       36,831 

1927: A&E Attendances: All Types BTH 
Sept 
2017 

Actual 16,667 16,941 16,759 17,849 17,250 16,610       102,076 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 47



Health Scrutiny 
Mid Year Summary 2016-17 

 
 

Page 14 of 14 

CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework 
The NHS CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework below gives the over view and measures monitored through NHS England. The framework below was released by 
NHSE on the 27

th
 December 2017 and is the most current document. 

 

 

 

Blackpool CCG Improvement and Assessment Indicator Summary – December 2017 

P
age 48



 

Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager 

Date of Meeting:  24 January 2018 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider the content of the Council’s Forward Plan, January 2018 - May 2018, 
relating to Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee (AHSC) functions. There 
is one relevant item: Homelessness Strategy.  

2.0 Recommendations: 
 

2.1 Members will have the opportunity to question the relevant Cabinet Member in 
relation to items contained within the Forward Plan relating to Adult Social Care and 
Health Scrutiny functions. 
 

2.2 Members will have the opportunity to consider whether any of the items should be 
subjected to pre-decision scrutiny. In so doing, account should be taken of any 
requests or observations made by the relevant Cabinet Member. A request has been 
made for the Homelessness Strategy to be considered at the Committee’s meeting 
on 14 March 2018 with the Strategy then considered by the Executive at its meeting 
in April 2018. Otherwise the Committee may consider the Strategy Action Plan at its 
meeting in May 2018.  
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendations: 

3.1 
 

To enable the opportunity for pre-decision scrutiny of the Forward Plan items. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

N/A 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None. 
 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “Communities: Creating stronger communities and 
increasing resilience”. 
 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 

The Forward Plan is prepared by the Leader of the Council to cover a period of four 
months and has effect from the first working day of any month. It is updated on a 
monthly basis and subsequent plans cover a period beginning with the first working 
day of the second month covered in the preceding plan. 

 
5.2 The Forward Plan contains matters which the Leader has reason to believe will be 

subject of a key decision to be taken either by the Executive, a Committee of the 
Executive, individual Cabinet Members, or Officers. 
 

5.3 Attached at Appendix 6 (a) is a list of items contained in the current Forward Plan. 
Further details appertaining to each item contained in the Forward Plan has 
previously been forwarded to all members separately. 
 

5.6 Witnesses/representatives 
 

5.6.1 The following Cabinet Member is responsible for the Forward Plan item in this report 
and has been invited to attend the meeting: Councillor Wright. 

 
 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 
No 

 List of Appendices:  
 Appendix 6 (a) - Summary of items contained within Forward Plan 

January 2018 - May 2018. 
 

 
6.0 Legal considerations: 

 
6.1 
 

None. 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None. 
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None. 
 

Page 50



9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None. 
 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN -  SUMMARY OF KEY DECISIONS 

(JANUARY 2018 TO MAY 2018) 
* Denotes New Item 

 
Page 

No. (of 
FP) 

Anticipated 
Date 

of Decision 
Matter for Decision 

Decision 
Reference 

Decision 
Taker 

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member 

23 *March  
2018 

Homelessness Prevention 
Strategy 

9/2018 Executive Cllr Wright  

 

Matter for decision 

Ref 9/2018 

Homelessness Prevention Strategy  

Decision making individual 
or body 

Executive 

Relevant Cabinet Member Councillor Mrs Christine Wright, Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

Date on which or period 
within which decision is to 
be made 

March 2018 

Who is to be consulted and 
how 

Relevant stakeholders and  interested parties 

How representations are to 
be made and by what date 

Representations are sought in writing by 1 February 
2018 

Documents to be 
submitted to the decision 
maker for consideration 

Executive Report 

Evaluation of Consultation responses 

Name and address of 
responsible officer 

 

Andrew Foot, Head of Housing 

e-mail:   Andrew.foot@blackpool.gov.uk 

Tel:  (01253) 476339 

 

Appendix 6 (a) 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager 

Date of Meeting:  24 January 2018 
 
 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORKPLAN 2017-2018  
 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee Workplan 2017-
2018, together with any suggestions that Members may wish to make for scrutiny 
review topics. 
 

2.0 Recommendations: 
 

2.1 
 
 
2.2 

To approve the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee Workplan 2017-
2018, taking into account any suggestions for amendment or addition. 
 
To monitor the implementation of the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny 
Committee’s recommendations/actions. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendations: 

3.1 
 

To ensure the Workplan is up-to-date and is an accurate representation of the 
Committee’s work. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

N/A 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “Communities: Creating stronger communities and 
increasing resilience”. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 
 
5.0 Background Information 

 
5.1 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
 

Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee Workplan 
 
The Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee Workplan 2017-2018 is 
attached at Appendix 7 (a). The Workplan is a flexible document that sets out the 
work that the Committee will undertake over the course of the year.  
 
Members are invited, either now or in the future, to suggest topics that might be 
suitable for scrutiny in order that they be added to the Workplan. 
 

5.2 
 
5.2.1 
 
 
 
 

Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee Review Checklist 
 
The Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee Review Checklist is attached at 
Appendix 7 (b). The checklist forms part of the mandatory scrutiny procedure for 
establishing review panels and must therefore be completed and submitted for 
consideration by the Committee, prior to a topic being approved for scrutiny. 

5.3 
 
5.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.2 
 

Implementation of Recommendations/Actions 
 
The table attached to Appendix 7 (c) has been developed to assist the Adult Social 
Care and Health Scrutiny Committee to effectively ensure that recommendations 
made are acted upon and also to review the effectiveness of outcomes. The table will 
be regularly updated and submitted to each meeting. The Resilient Communities and 
Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee was previously responsible for Adult Social 
Care scrutiny. Actions requested by the Resilient Communities and Children’s 
Services Scrutiny Committee were transferred over to the Adult Social Care and 
Health Scrutiny Committee to monitor. 
 
Members are requested to consider the updates provided in the table. 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No 
  

List of Appendices: 
 

 

 Appendix 7 (a), Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee 
Workplan 2017-2018 
Appendix 7 (b), Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee 
Review Checklist 
Appendix 7 (c), Implementation of Recommendations/Actions 

 
 

Page 56



 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None. 
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None. 
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None. 
 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None. 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



        Appendix 7 (a), Date revised: 16 Jan 2018 

Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2017-2018  

14 March 2018 

1. Public Health Overview (to include progress with new Integrated Drug and Alcohol Support Service; 

performance of new Public Health Services (0-19); Due North progress; and Lancashire/Blackpool Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy - Blackpool Action Plan)  

2. Stop Smoking - Service Model - specification options (may be covered in overview report) 

3. Adult Services Overview (to include Quality / Costs of Care Providers, Commissioning of Adult Services) 

4. Domestic Abuse Strategy - Action Plan  (may be in March/May alongside the Homelessness Strategy) 

9 May 2018 

1. Tackling Childhood / Adult Obesity 

2. Homelessness Strategy and action plan (preventing, supporting and managing homelessness, may be in 

March/May alongside the Domestic Abuse Strategy) 

3. Health and Social Care Integration Progress (focus on STPs) including detailed financial costings and 

patient case studies (e.g. ‘step up / step down’) with attendance of clinician / hub team leader 

4 July 2018 

1. Availability/Duration of GP Appointments and A&E waiting times (Access to Services and Quality)  

2. Annual Council Plan Performance report on relevant Priority Two projects, complete with ‘Blackpool 

Outcomes’ - for summer 2018. 

3. Adult Services Overview (to include Transforming Care for Adults with Learning Disabilities progress) 

4. Public Health Overview (to include progress with breastfeeding / infant feeding support) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



Items covered during 2017-2018 

5 July 2017  

SHORT PROGRESS ITEMS 

1. Council Plan Overview Report (Adult Services and Health indicators) - End of Year 2016-2017 (Apr 2016 

to Mar 2017) to include healthchecks explanatory update and Daily Mile - see action tracker 

2. Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report - End of Year 2016-2017 for quality of 

care (for all commissioned services), CCG referrals and commissioned hospital and ambulance services, GP 

practices and financial performance (improved access to psychological therapies links to mental health 

item - provision and quality) 

PUBLIC HEALTH THEMED ITEMS (items 4-6 are linked) 

3. Young People’s Mental Health. Hear from young people concerning mental health concerns/support 

and the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) provider.  Mainly consideration of the 

Transformation Action Plan (Young People’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing, Resilience and Mental 

Health). This item was deferred from 22 Mar and 26 Apr 2017 (latter due to Purdah). 

4. Public Mental Health Strategy - Action Plan and Progress (c/f) including improving feedback, speed, 

outcomes of GP mental health referrals for acute cases 

5. Mental Health Services - Provision and Quality - outcomes of GP referrals for acute cases - speed of 

securing initial assessments, patient voice, information sharing feedback to GPs, quality of assessments, 

timely discharges with appropriate follow-on (commissioners / mental health parties discussion Jun 2017) 

SUSTAINABILITY  AND INSPECTIONS THEMED ITEMS 

6. The Harbour - Inspection Progress [links to mental health items] following the CQC report of the Sept 

2016 inspection which provided sufficient good quality and safety assurance. The CQC provided a ‘good’ 

rating overall including quality of care but the ‘safe’ domain ‘required improvement’ for the Lancashire 

Care Foundation Trust as a whole, i.e. across Lancashire without specific breakdown of performance in 

Blackpool (The Harbour) although local performance will be extracted. Staff survey outcomes and 

improvement actions also to be considered.  

27 Sept 2017 

1. Annual Healthwatch Progress Report 2016-2017 (Apr 2016 - Mar 2017), 2017-2018 Priorities Timeline 

2. Health and Social Care Integration - Progress (focus on Sustainability and Transformation Planning 

including Projected Costings/Savings, New Models of Care, Healthier Lancashire). Interim update 

circulated to Members - Apr 2017. 

3. Clinical and Financial Sustainability - Blackpool Teaching Hospitals - Progress 

Follows Dec 2016 meeting and further assurance required following winter (pressures) performance 

15 Nov 2017 

1. Blackpool Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2016-2017  

2. Priority Two - Key Priority Report: Public Health and Social Care  

3. Adults Services Overview report (to include dementia support) 

4. Public Health Overview report (may include NHS Healthchecks explanatory update, Daily Mile progress, 

Free School Breakfasts, Life Expectancy, Sexual Health action plan, Breastfeeding) 

24 Jan 2018 

1. Public Mental Health Strategy update (including suicide prevention) 

2. Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report 

 

 

Page 60



Appendix 7 (b) 

 

 

SCRUTINY SELECTION CHECKLIST 
 
 
Title of proposed Scrutiny: 
 
The list is intended to assist the relevant scrutiny committee in deciding whether or not to approve a 
topic that has been suggested for scrutiny. 
 
Whilst no minimum or maximum number of ‘yes’ answers are formally required, the relevant scrutiny 
committee is recommended to place higher priority on topics related to the performance and 
priorities of the Council. 
 
Please expand on how the proposal will meet each criteria you have answered ‘yes’ to. 

Yes/No 

The review will add value to the Council and/or its partners overall performance: 
 
 
 

 

The review is in relation to one or more of the Council’s priorities: 
 
 
 

 

The Council or its partners are not performing well in this area: 
 
 
 

 

It is an area where a number of complaints (or bad press) have been received: 
 
 
 

 

The issue is strategic and significant: 
 
 
 

 

There is evidence of public interest in the topic: 
 
 
 

 

The issue has potential impact for one or more sections of the community: 
 
 
 

 

Service or policy changes are planned and scrutiny could have a positive input: 
 
 
 

 

Adequate resources (both members and officers) are available to carry out the scrutiny: 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 61



Appendix 7 (b) 

 

 

 
Please give any further details on the proposed review: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Completed by:                                                           Date:  

 

Page 62



Date last updated: 16.01.18        Appendix 7 (c) 
        
 
ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY - ACTION TRACKER 

Note - from 5 July 2017 replaced the old Action Tracker which contained actions from Health Scrutiny and Resilient Communities Scrutiny. Numbering 
retained so does not start from number one.  Actions from 5 July 2017 which were amber or new have been included (some are now marked as green). 
 
Colour code: red = significant risk of missing deadline / not being completed (mitigation required); amber = some risk; white = new action; green = complete 

GREEN ACTIONS ARE ONLY SHOWN FOR THE IMMEDIATE MEETING FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF ACTION (FULL LIST AVAILABLE IF REQUIRED) 
AMBER ACTIONS - REC NO’S - 30 (PUBLIC HEALTH), 32, 33 (BOTH CCG), 37 (LCFT), 39 AND 40 (BOTH CCG) 

NEW ACTIONS - SEE END OF LIST - REC NO’s 41-43 
 

REC 
NO. 

DATE OF 
REC. 

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICR 

UPDATE (NOTE - ANY EXTRENSIVE RESPONSES ARE 
FURTHER BELOW AFTER THE END OF THE TABLE) 

RED 
AMBER 
GREEN  

30 HSC 
14.12.16 

Update before the March 2017 
meeting from Councillor Cross on GP 
patient referral rates for support to 
stop smoking. 

Mar 
2017 

Cllr Cross  17.04.17 Reminder to be sent, response expected 
before 26.04.17. 27.09.17 - a comprehensive report on 
the new service will be provided as part of the Public 
Health overview report (Nov 17). 28.11.17 - ref made 
during 15.11.17 meeting to new service to support 
smoking reduction to be commissioned in early 2018, 
Scrutiny will want opportunity to comment. 16.01.18 
Potential new service specification / model will be 
considered at 14.03.18 meeting and can include an 
update on GP patient referral rates. 

Amber 

32 HSC 
14.12.16 

Future CCG performance reports 
should contain actual numbers and 
percentages for proper context as well 
as explanatory commentary. 

Jul 2017 David Bonson / 
Kate Newton 

12.10.17 Members to consider whether they are 
satisfied with the report presentation (next 
performance report due 24.01.18). 28.11.17 - 
requested for 24.01.18 report. If that report is in the 
right format then action will be complete. 16.01.18 – as 
per the previous update, Members to confirm 
whether further change required (this action should 
then be considered complete). 
 
 

Amber 
 

P
age 63

http://democracy.blackpool.gov.uk/documents/s24982/ITEM%2011%20-%20App%2011c%20-%20Actions%20and%20Recs%20Tracker%2017.04.17.pdf


Date last updated: 16.01.18        Appendix 7 (c) 
        
 

REC 
NO. 

DATE OF 
REC. 

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICR 

UPDATE (NOTE - ANY EXTRENSIVE RESPONSES ARE 
FURTHER BELOW AFTER THE END OF THE TABLE) 

RED 
AMBER 
GREEN  

33 HSC 
14.12.16 

The next CCG performance report to 
include patient satisfaction data, 
quality of care figures and financial 
budget monitoring.  
 

Jul 2017 David Bonson 13.03.17 CCG may be requested to bring the scheduled 
July 2017 update forward to additional 26.04.17 
meeting. This is subject to CCG being able to verify final 
year-end figures for 2016/17 (end Mar ’17) in time for 
Apr meeting. 26.04.17 - quality of care indicators 
monitored by NHS England are reported in the normal 
performance report [Scrutiny Officer note - Members 
may wish to review those indicators and consider 
whether they are satisfied that sufficient quality of care 
info has been provided, e.g. recovery rates, feedback 
from patients] See Action 19. 12.10.17 This needs to be 
considered by Members in good time before the next 
performance report is due 24.01.18. 28.11.17 - 
requested for 24.01.18 report. If that report is in the 
right format then action will be complete. 16.01.18 – as 
per the previous update, Members to confirm 
whether further change required (this action should 
then be considered complete). 

Amber 
 

37 ASCH 
05.07.17 

Demographic breakdown of service 
users and available facilities at ‘The 
Cove’ from the Lancashire Care 
Foundation Trust. 

Jul / Aug 
2017 

Steve 
Winterson 

12.10.17 No response received, due to be chased. 
28.11.17 Further reminder to be sent. 16.01.18 – as per 
the previous update, another reminder to be sent. 

Amber 

39 ASCH 
27.09.17 

Receive a copy of Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan Impact Report 

Oct / 
Nov 
2017 

David Bonson 07.11.17 The impact report won’t be available until 
spring 2018 when Scrutiny is next due to receive an 
STP update (May 2018).  

Amber 
 

40 ASCH 
27.09.17 

Receive details of how pharmacies 
used effectively to support patients & 
reduce demand on GP practices. 

Oct / 
Nov 
2017 

David Bonson 07.11.17 Reminder to be sent. 28.11.17 Further 
reminder to be sent. 16.01.18 – as per the previous 
update, another reminder to be sent. 
 
 

Amber 

P
age 64



Date last updated: 16.01.18        Appendix 7 (c) 
        
 

REC 
NO. 

DATE OF 
REC. 

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICR 

UPDATE (NOTE - ANY EXTRENSIVE RESPONSES ARE 
FURTHER BELOW AFTER THE END OF THE TABLE) 

RED 
AMBER 
GREEN  

41 ASCH 
15.11.17 

Performance reports to include targets 
for all indicators in the main pages. 

04.07.18 Val Watson Note - next report (end year) due July 2018. Not 
due yet 

42 ASCH 
15.11.17 

Target-setting methodology to be in 
performance reports where targets 
were not being met or where there 
may be proposals to reset targets. 

04.07.18 Val Watson 
Supported by 
service leads 
(Karen Smith, 
Arif Rajpura) 

Note - next performance report due July 2018 but if 
Directorate Overview reports (due March 2018) contain 
targets off-track / changes proposed then methodology 
info required. 

Not 
due yet 

43 ASCH 
15.11.17 

Within performance reports and in 
reference to the target of people with 
learning difficulties who had paid 
employment, consideration should be 
given to including, people working in 
the voluntary sector or other unpaid 
work who had learning difficulties. 

14.03.18 Karen Smith Note - next overdue report due 14.03.18 Not 
due yet 

 

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 15 NOVEMBER 2017
	4 PUBLIC MENTAL HEALTH AND SUICIDE PREVENTION
	ITEM 4 - App 4 (a) Lancs SC SP Logic model

	5 BLACKPOOL CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP MID YEAR 2017-2018 PERFORMANCE REPORT (APRIL 2017 TO SEPTEMBER 2017)
	ITEM 5 - App 5 (a) CCG Mid Year Performance 1

	6 FORWARD PLAN
	ITEM 6 - App 6 (a) - FP

	7 ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORKPLAN 2017-2018
	ITEM 7 - App 7 (a) - ASC&HSC Work Plan 12.10.17 short
	ITEM 7 - App 7 (b) - WP Selection
	ITEM 7 - App 7 (c) - Actions and Recs Tracker 1


